
CITY OF NORTH POLE 
Regular Meeting June 17, 2019 

North Pole Council Chambers 
125 Snowman Lane, North Pole, Alaska 

www.northpolealaska.com  

Monday, June 17, 2019 
Committee of the Whole: 6:30 p.m. 

Regular City Council Meeting – 7:00 p.m. 

MAYOR CITY CLERK 
Michael Welch Judy Binkley   
488-8584 488-8583

COUNCIL MEMBERS 
Doug Isaacson – Mayor Pro Tem  322-3133
Avery Thompson – Deputy Mayor Pro Tem 388-5351
Perry Walley – Alt Dep Mayor Pro Tem 347-0135
DeJohn Cromer 347-2808
Aino Welch  488-5834
David Skipps  750-5106

1. Call to Order/Roll Call

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the US Flag

3. Invocation

4. Approval of the Agenda

5. Approval of the Minutes

a. June 03, 2019

6. Communications from the Mayor

7. Council Member Questions of the Mayor

8. Communications from Department Heads, Borough Representative and the City Clerk

9. Ongoing Projects Report

City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 1 of 57

http://www.northpolealaska.com/


 
10. Citizens Comments (Limited to Five (5) minutes per Citizen) 

 
11. Old Business 
 
12. New Business 

 
a. Request to Approve the ALMR FY 20 Membership Agreement. 
b. Request to Approve the Zoll Extended Warranty & Preventive Maintenance Contract. 
c. Request to Approve the Fairbanks North Star Borough and City of North Pole 

Emergency Medical Services and Ambulance Contract. 
d. Ordinance 19-09, An Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska to Amend the 2019 

Public Works Budget to Increase Funding to Hire Additional Part-Time Employees. 
e. Ordinance 19-10, An Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska to Amend the 2019 

Operating Budget and Other Funds. 
f. Request for Approval of the City Hall Copier Lease. 

13. Council Comments 
 
14. Adjournment 
 
Detailed information and copies of agenda documents may be obtained at the Office of the City Clerk, 
125 Snowman Lane or on the City website www.northpolealaska.com .  Notice of Council Action is 
available at City Hall and on the City website following the meeting.  Council Meetings are aired live 
via audio streaming from the City’s website.  Inquiries concerning ADA compliance or 
accommodations should be directed to the City Clerk.   
 

City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 2 of 57

http://www.northpolealaska.com/


Draf
t

1 
City of North Pole NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT June 03, 2019
Regular Meeting Minutes 

NORTH POLE CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES, JUNE 03, 2019

NORTH POLE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
125 SNOWMAN LANE, NORTH POLE, ALASKA

Mayor Michael Welch called the regular City Council meeting of Monday, June 03, 2019 to 
order at 7:00 p.m with the following Council Members in attendance:

Council Members Present: Avery Thompson, Deputy Mayor Pro Tem 
Aino Welch
David Skipps

Absent: Doug Isaacson, Mayor Pro Tem 
Perry Walley, Alt Dep Mayor Pro Tem
DeJohn Cromer 

Also Present: Judy Binkley, City Clerk/HR Manager
William Butler, Director of City Services,
Tricia Fogarty, Chief Financial Officer,
Steve Dutra, Police Chief
Geoff Coon, Fire Chief

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG
Mayor Welch asked everyone to join him in the Pledge of Allegiance.

INVOCATION
The Invocation was given by City Council Member Welch.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Mr. Thompson moved to approve the agenda of June 03, 2019. 

Seconded by Mr. Skipps.

Discussion
Mr. Thompson moved to consent the following items:

New Business:
b. Request for Approval of the City of North Pole Advertising Contract with the Fairbanks

Daily Newsminer.
c. Request to Approve Two Authorized Signers on Behalf of the City to Create an Interest-

Earning Bank Account with Mount McKinley Bank to Hold Advance Payments to the

City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 3 of 57



raf
t

2 
City of North Pole NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT June 03, 2019
Regular Meeting Minutes 

City in Support of the Moose Creek Water System Expansion Project.  Further, Authorize 
Expenses Thru the City’s Central Treasury Account.

Seconded by Mr. Skipps

Discussion 
None 

A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO AMEND THE AGENDA OF
JUNE 03, 201  AS FOLLOWS: 

YES:   Skipps, Thompson, Welch, Welch
NO:  None 
ABSTAIN: None 
Mayor Welch declared the MOTION CARRIED

Discussion on the agenda as amended
None

A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO APPROVE THE AMENDED 
AGENDA OF JUNE 03, 2019 AS FOLLOWS:

YES:   Skipps, Thompson, Welch, Welch
NO:  None 
ABSTAIN: None 
Mayor Welch declared the MOTION CARRIED

Seconded by Ms. Welch.

APPROV OF MINUTES
Mr. Thompson moved to approve the Minutes of May 13, 2019.

D
Discussion
None 

YES: Skipps, Thompson, Welch, Welch
NO: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
Mayor Welch declared the MOTION CARRIED

City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 4 of 57



Draf
t

3 
City of North Pole NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT June 03, 2019
Regular Meeting Minutes 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR (Audio 3:27) 
May 18 – North Pole Fire Department Open House, 1100-1400.
May 18 – North Pole Lions “Crusin with Santa,” Hotel North Pole till 1600.
May 20 – Met with Festival Committee at NPCH 1800-1915.  Our 4th of July theme will
be “Winter is Coming.”
May 21 – IGU Meeting at Key Bank to introduce Mr. Mike Miller as the new North Pole
appointee.
May 23 – Visit FNG to pick up documents.  Attended the Eielson AFB 2020
Homecoming and Welcoming Committee meeting at FNSB.
May 23 – Follow up with George Stefan at the FNSB Planning Department over the
progress of issuance of new permit to the Pagoda.  Also met with Kellan Spillman.
May 24 – Tiger Team Meeting at FNSB 1020-1221.  Short visit with Jomo Stewart of
FEDCO concerning projected housing issues for North Pole in 2020.
The next North Pole 4th of July Festival Committee meets next Monday, June 10, Council
Chambers at 1800. 
Proclamation: NPHS May 2019 Student of the Month – Justin Peterson.

COUNCIL MEMBER QUESTIONS OF THE MAYOR
None

COMMUNICATIONS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS, BOROUGH 
REPRESENTATIVE AND THE CITY CLERK

Police Department, Chief Dutra (Audio 9:15)
Pinning of Sgt. McBroom – Congrats.
Stats – Larceny a little high but all unrelated calls.
Vacation next week.  I will be available by phone if needed.
Just received our asset forfeiture check for $38,685.20.

Fire Department, Chief Coon (Audio 11:17)
We are currently taking applications for a Captain position. This is an expected vacancy
and we hope to have the position filled by the end of July.
Deputy Chief Heineken is beginning the recruiting process for both live-in and volunteer
firefighters.
Department is sending medics to the moto cross trac  for races.
Burn permits are still required, they are available online at www.forestry.alaska.gov/burn
Training:

o One member is finishing up with a Fire Service Instructor class.
o I will be attending a class at the National Fire Academy this month.

Maintenance Report:
o The third out ambulance was repaired at a cost of $2000.00. 

City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 5 of 57



Draf
t

4 
City of North Pole NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT June 03, 2019
Regular Meeting Minutes 

o The training annex has two 40-year-old forced air furnaces and one is in need of
replacing before winter.  We will be getting some quotes and go out to bid to
replace one them this year and budget for the other one next year.

o No additional work has been done on the replacement vehicle for the Suburban.
We expect to get quotes in July.

o We completed hose testing early and will move on to pump and hydrant testing.

Director of City Services, Bill Butler (Audio 15:40) 
Building Department

No new building permits issued or permit applications submitted.
IGU regasification project will likely be reduced in scope and smaller than the original 
planned project due to funding issues.

Public Works
Summer flower plantings in process.
Landscape management work will now predominate PW’s activities.
Cody has hired three part-time summer help.
At the moment all our PW vehicles are working, though Cody is researching the state
contract to replace our failing 34 year-old orange pickup truck.
Mayor Welch asked if the three part-time summer hires are adequate. Mr. Butler replied
it  not and wanted to discuss the potential of another one for this year.  Mayor Welch
also asked if Mr. Butler was satisfied with the progress going on in City Hall for the
heating problem.  Mr. Butler replied that it is too soon to make a determination.  We will 
wait and see until winter to make a judgement.

Utility Department
Sulfolane settlement.

o Water main installation is ahead of schedule: 100% of Zone 4 water mains are in
the ground and Zone 3 water main installation is approaching 90%.

o Almost 85% of eligible property owners in Zones 1 & 2 have signed up for utility
accounts as of May 31.

o Installation of customer service lines started the week of May 20 and over 20 new
customers have been connected to the system.

Moose Creek Water System Expansion Project.
o Progressing to the 35% design documents that are due June 10.
o The USACE has approved the process to release advance funding to the City and

has approved the first advanced payment.
o All parties are anxiously awaiting the release of the Record of Decision (ROD) –

the formal approval by EPA and ADEC of the plan to provide water to Moose
Creek.

o Discussions have begun with the USACE for the construction phase cooperative
agreement.  USAF is looking for a decision from the City by July 15 whether
willing to construct the system.  Approval from the City will require two
affirmative votes from the Council.  The USAF needs to know by July 15 so they

City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 6 of 57



Draf
t

5 
City of North Pole NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT June 03, 2019
Regular Meeting Minutes 

have time to repurpose the project funding before September 30, 2019 if the City 
declines to proceed with the project.

o I am planning to make a presentation to the Council at the June 17 meeting 
providing information on the Moose Creek Project including financial issues. 

Finance, Tricia Fogarty (Audio 24:54) 
We are working on the audit and the auditors have been requesting quite a few more 
reports and we touched base last week and they have a deadline for the end of the month.  
I will send emails out to let Council know how to contact Gary once that is arranged so 
Council can speak to the auditors.  Hopefully we will have this on the next agenda.  They 
did a federal single audit this year because of the Senior Center. 

Borough Representative
None 

City Clerk, Judy Binkley (Audio 27:22) 
I will be out of the office next week as I will be at Professional Development 2 (aka PD 
2) for the Northwest Clerks Institute at the University of Puget Sound.  I attended PD 1 
last year and am looking forward to my continued education this year. 
The 3 local municipal clerks’ offices are preparing for the Candidate Open House that 
will take place Saturday, June 19th at the Borough Assembly chambers.  I will let Council 
know what the times are once we have finalized the event.

ONGOING PROJECTS
None 

CITIZEN’S COMMENTS – (Limited to Five (5) minutes per Citizen) (Audio 28:50) 
Frank Turney, 1434 Lacey Street B, Fairbanks: Spoke to affirming the Alaska statehood 
act on the 90% oil royalties and asked Council to sponsor a resolution. 

OLD BUSINESS
None 

Public Comment
None 

NEW BUSINESS

REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF THE RENEWAL OF THE 2019-2020 CITY OF 
NORTH POLE HEALTHCARE PLAN. (Audio 35:52) 
Craig Kestran with RISQ Consulting introduced the renewal.

City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 7 of 57



Draf
t

6 
City of North Pole NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT June 03, 2019
Regular Meeting Minutes 

Public Comment
None 

Mr. Thompson moved to approve the Renewal of the 2019-2020 City of North Pole 
Healthcare Plan as Recommended by Craig Kestran.

Seconded by Ms. Welch.

Discussion
None 

A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO APPROVE THE RENEWAL OF 
THE 2019-2020 CITY OF NORTH POLE HEALTHCARE PLAN AS RECOMMENDED BY 
CRAIG KESTRAN AS FOLLOWS:

  YES:   Skipps, Thompson, Welch, Welch
  NO:  None 
  ABSTAIN: None 
  Mayor Welch declared the MOTION CARRIED

COUNCIL COMMENTS
None  

Mr. Thompson moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:49 p.m. 

Seconded by Mr. Skipps.

The regular meeting of Monday, June 03, 2019 adjourned at 7:50 p.m. 

These minutes passed and approved by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City 
Council on Monday, June 17, 2019. 

              
Michael W. Welch, Mayor 

ATTEST:

       
Judy L. Binkley, City Clerk 

City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 8 of 57



City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 9 of 57



City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 10 of 57



Sherry L. Shafer, Operations Management Office 
Alaska Land Mobile Radio - A Federal, State and Municipal Partnership 
Office:  269-8408 
Fax:  269-6797

Follow us on Twitter! @ALMR_SOA

City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 11 of 57



A FEDERAL, STATE AND MUNICIPAL PARTNERSHIPA FEDERAL, STATE AND MUNICIPAL PARTNERSHIP

Alaska Land Mobile Radio Communications System
Membership Agreement

20190306_MbrAgrmnt-Rev14 1

Access to the Alaska Land Mobile Radio (ALMR) Communications System provided through this 
Membership Agreement, and any amendment(s) thereto, is conditioned upon the approval of the terms 
and conditions of access as outlined in (the) ALMR Communications System Cooperative and Mutual Aid 
Agreement and approval by the Executive Council.

This Membership Agreement is for the period of July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020, and entered into by and 
between (the Member aka User) City of North Pole whose address is 125 Snowman Lane, North Pole, 
Alaska 99705, and the Alaska Land Mobile Radio (ALMR) Executive Council, whose designated 
representative is the ALMR Operations Management Office, 5900 E. Tudor Road, Suite 121, Anchorage, 
AK  99507-1245.

I. PURPOSE

ALMR is a multi-site, dedicated public safety wireless communications system providing portable and 
mobile coverage to its Member agencies.  Member agency benefits and services include, but are not 
limited to, a Project 25 compliant system, multiple system redundancies with backup power, a wide range 
of talkgroups, auto affiliation and de-affiliation, electronic identification on all transmissions, microwave 
system connectivity, encryption availability, emergency alert availability, private calling availability, system
security, radio interoperability, system management, assistance to User agencies for radio code plug 
development and subscriber unit familiarization, operations management support including, but not 
limited to those products and services listed in the Operations Management Office (OMO) and System 
Management Office (SMO) Customer Support Plans.

Every effort will be made to keep the ALMR System operational 24/7.  However, both the Member agency 
and ALMR acknowledge that there may be situations where planned and unplanned System outages may 
occur. ALMR will make every effort to avoid service disruptions, will promptly notify Member agencies of 
disruptions, and will make every effort to respond and restore interrupted service in a timely manner.  
However, acknowledging that service disruptions are likely, ALMR System infrastructure owners will not 
be liable for any resulting impact from such disruptions.

II. DEFINITIONS

A. Abuse of User Privileges:  repeated violation of System guidelines, procedures, protocols, or 
violation of the Membership Agreement may result in termination of the Membership Agreement 
subject to the review and direction of the Executive Council.  A decision by the Executive Council 
is final and non-appealable.

B. Alaska Federal Executive Association (AFEA):  Federal government entities, agencies and 
organizations, other than the Department of Defense, that operate on the shared ALMR system 
infrastructure.

C. Alaska Land Mobile Radio (ALMR) Communications System:  the ALMR Communications 
System, which uses but is separate from the State of Alaska Telecommunications System 
(SATS), as established in the Cooperative and Mutual Aid Agreement.

D. Alaska Municipal League: a voluntary non-profit organization in Alaska that represents Member 
local governments.

E. Cooperative and Mutual Aid Agreement:  the instrument that establishes ALMR and sets out the 
terms and conditions by which the System will be governed, managed, operated and modified by 
the Parties signing the Agreement.

F. Department of Administration (DOA):  a State of Alaska (SOA) department that maintains the 
SOA Telecommunication System (SATS) and provides information technology (IT) and 
communications technical support to state agencies.

G. Department of Defense – Alaska:  Alaskan Command, US Air Force and US Army component 
services operating under United States Pacific Command and United States Northern Command.

City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 12 of 57



A FEDERAL, STATE AND MUNICIPAL PARTNERSHIPA FEDERAL, STATE AND MUNICIPAL PARTNERSHIP

Alaska Land Mobile Radio Communications System
Membership Agreement

20190306_MbrAgrmnt-Rev14 2

H. Emergency Alarm: a Project 25 feature, when enabled, allows a Member to transmit an 
emergency alarm to their dispatch center, or a dispatch center mutually agreed upon.

I. Executive Council: made up of three voting members and two associate members representing 
the original four constituency groups: the State of Alaska, the Department of Defense, Federal 
Non-DOD agencies (represented by the Alaska Federal Executive Association), and local 
municipal/government (represented by the Alaska Municipal League and the Municipality of 
Anchorage).

J. Gateway: a device that allows a disparate radio to communicate real time, overcoming spectrum, 
formatting, and other technical challenges. ALMR utilizes MotoBridge™ gateways. 

K. Information Assurance (IA):  protects and defends information and information systems by 
ensuring their availability, integrity, authentication, confidentiality, and non-repudiation. This 
includes providing for restoration of information systems by incorporating protection, detection, 
and reaction capabilities.

L. Local Governments: those Alaska political subdivisions defined as municipalities in AS 
29.71.800(13).

M. Member:  a public safety agency including, but not limited to a general government agency (local, 
state or federal) its authorized employees and personnel (paid or volunteer), and its service 
provider, participating in and using the System under a Membership Agreement.

N. Membership Agreement:  the agreement entered into between the ALMR Operations 
Management Office, as the designated agent for the Executive Council, and a user agency, which 
sets forth the terms and conditions under which the System provides services to a user agency
and the user agency’s responsibilities, while operating on the System.

O. Municipality of Anchorage (MOA):  the MOA covers 1,951 square miles with a population of over
300,000.  The MOA stretches from Portage, at the southern border, to the Knik River at the 
northern border, and encompasses the communities of Girdwood, Indian, Anchorage, Eagle 
River, Chugiak/Birchwood, and the native village of Eklutna. 

P. Non-Proprietary Talkgroup – a talkgroup assigned during a multi-agency operation, such as one 
assigned by central dispatch. A non-proprietary talkgroup is not member-exclusive and is 
cooperatively shared by participating Members.

Q. Operations Manager:  represents the User Council interests and makes decisions on issues 
related to the day-to-day operation of the System and any urgent or emergency System 
operational or repair decisions; establishes policies, procedures, contracts, organizations, and 
agreements that provide the service levels as defined in the Service Level Agreement in 
coordination with the User Council.

R. Operations Management Office (OMO):  develops recommendations for policies, procedures, and 
guidelines; identifies technologies and standards; and coordinates intergovernmental resources 
to facilitate communications interoperability with emphasis on improving public safety and 
emergency response communications. 

S. Party/Parties: one or more Parties who have signed the Agreement (Cooperative and Mutual Aid 
Agreement).  The Parties to the agreement are:  Department of Defense - Alaska, Alaska Federal 
Executive Association, and the State of Alaska, respectively or collectively.

T. P25 Standards:  the P25 suite of standards involves digital land mobile radio (LMR) services for 
local, state and national (federal) public safety organizations and agencies.  P25 is applicable to 
LMR equipment authorized or licensed, in the U.S., under the National Telecommunications and 
Information Administration (NTIA) or Federal Communications Commission (FCC) rules and 
regulations.

U. Proprietary Talkgroup: an exclusive talkgroup assigned to a single, specific agency.
V. Radio – either a Project 25 compliant control station, consolette, mobile or portable radio, which 

has a unique identification number and is assigned to the ALMR.
W. Radio Programming: fleetmapping, template programming and reprogramming, and assignment 

of talkgroups within ALMR.
X. State of Alaska (SOA):  the primary maintainer of the SATS (the State’s microwave system), and 

shared owner of the System.

City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 13 of 57



A FEDERAL, STATE AND MUNICIPAL PARTNERSHIPA FEDERAL, STATE AND MUNICIPAL PARTNERSHIP

Alaska Land Mobile Radio Communications System
Membership Agreement

20190306_MbrAgrmnt-Rev14 3

Y. State of Alaska Telecommunications Systems (SATS):  the State of Alaska statewide 
telecommunications system microwave network.

Z. Super System Management: the responsibility residing with the Operations Manager/System 
Manager on behalf of all ALMR Members that include, but are not limited to:
1. Assign radio use priorities;
2. Assign radio identification numbers;
3. Manage talkgroups to assure appropriate use of ALMR;
4. Set standards for the selection and supervision of ALMR personnel;
5. Enforce guidelines, procedures, and protocols governing the operation of radios on ALMR;
6. Generate and use statistical data and reports concerning Member agency talkgroups, call 

duration, call types, busy signals, and other data analyses and reports; and
7. Enforce termination of the Membership Agreement when a Member agency’s conduct or 

action(s) cause systemic and/or continuous ALMR operation problems.
AA. System Management Office: the team of specialists responsible for management of 

maintenance and operations of the System.  
BB. Talkgroup:  the electronic equivalent of a channel on a trunked system; a unique group of radio 

users that can communicate with each other. (NOTE:  Talkgroups differ from regular and 
conventional radio channels in which they are not restricted to a certain radio frequency and 
may use up to 21 separate frequencies that are assigned by a controller on a control channel.)

CC. Template: the software programmed in a radio provided to customers by the SMO that controls 
the radio functions and communication capabilities.

DD. User:  an agency, person, group, organization or other entity which has an existing written 
Membership Agreement to operate on ALMR with one of the Parties to the Cooperative and
Mutual Aid Agreement.  The terms User and Member are synonymous and interchangeable.

EE. User Council:  governing body responsible for recommending all operational and maintenance 
decisions affecting the System.  Under the direction and supervision of the Executive Council, 
the User Council has the responsibility for management oversight and operation of the System.  
The User Council oversees the development of System operations plans, procedures and 
policies.

III. ALMR COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES

Services provided are listed in the Operations Management Office and System Management Office 
Customer Support Plans at http://www.alaskalandmobileradio.org.

IV.  GENERAL PROVISIONS

A. ALMR Mobile Radio Coverage: ALMR provides portable and mobile radio communication 
coverage to the Member subject to the Member’s compliance with recommended optimal 
performance standards for equipment, antenna installation, and maintenance.  If the Member 
agency detects possible ALMR network infrastructure malfunctions or radio communication 
coverage loss, the Member should first contact its equipment service or maintenance provider for 
an evaluation of the problem.  If the service provider determines the problem is not an equipment 
installation or maintenance problem, the Member should promptly notify the Help Desk.  The Help 
Desk will immediately notify the System Manager, or designated on-call technician, who will
promptly investigate and take appropriate corrective action to alleviate the coverage loss or 
network infrastructure malfunction, and report the corrective action to the Member agency.
Coverage is not guaranteed and will vary from location to location.  The Member agency is 
encouraged to conduct its own radio communications coverage test to determine the expected 
coverage level in its geographic jurisdiction.

B. Private Calling Availability: an agency may choose to avail itself of Private Calling.  Private 
calling permits properly programmed mobile and portable radios in a talkgroup to enter into one-

City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 14 of 57



A FEDERAL, STATE AND MUNICIPAL PARTNERSHIPA FEDERAL, STATE AND MUNICIPAL PARTNERSHIP

Alaska Land Mobile Radio Communications System
Membership Agreement

20190306_MbrAgrmnt-Rev14 4

on-one conversations. Only the initiating and target radio(s) are able to communicate with each 
other.  Private calling can tie-up ALMR System resources.  Consequently, a determination of the 
need and potential impact on the System will be made by the System Management Office when 
such a request is received from Member agencies.

C. Electronic and Infrastructure Maintenance: ALMR provides complete monitoring, inspection, and 
maintenance programs for all ALMR radio sites and System infrastructure in operation at those 
sites regardless of infrastructure ownership through contracts and memorandums of agreement.
ALMR staff and its certified vendors and partners provide proactive System repair and 
maintenance, extending the life and performance of ALMR for the direct benefit of all Members.

D. System Redundancy and Security: ALMR provides a system redundancy called fault tolerance.  
With fault tolerance, a single point of failure will generally not result in negative system wide 
performance.  Many redundant and backup systems within ALMR are designed to eliminate 
complete system failure.  Several levels of survivability are available. In the case of a catastrophic 
event, the rest of the System will continue to function in a site-trunking communication manner.

E. Performance Standards and Monitoring: ALMR utilizes automated performance standards and 
automated diagnostics, which are monitored 24 hours a day, every day. System management is 
maintained at the System Management Office and zone controllers on a daily basis.  ALMR staff 
adhere to stringent quality standards of installation and maintenance through scheduled 
automated testing of all sites, monitoring of Member satisfaction on a regular basis, tracking of 
Member problems and service requests, monitoring of scheduled and unscheduled System 
downtime, oversight of System traffic performance, drive testing within System, collection and 
analysis of empirical data, and planned system upgrades and enhancements.

F. Upgrades and Enhancements: upgrades are changes made to ALMR infrastructure to assure 
compliance or to improve upon previously existing features and operations of ALMR.  Some 
upgrades may be provided to all Member agencies at no additional charge.  Enhancements are 
modifications made to ALMR services or systems that add functions or features not originally part 
of ALMR or the services requested by the Member agencies. Such enhancements made to the 
infrastructure may also require an upgrade or replacement of user subscriber assets.  To access 
such enhancements and features, it is solely the responsibility of the User to upgrade their 
subscriber assets.  Also, if applicable, enhancements may necessitate an adjustment in all 
Member agencies fees.

G. Gateway Use: Use of gateway(s) is available to all ALMR Members on the System.  Specific 
protocols, policies, procedures and talkgroup agreements for agencies are required and can be 
developed and coordinated through the Operations Management and System Management 
Offices.

H. Information Assurance: as provided through the Department of Defense Information Assurance 
Risk Management Framework (DIARMF).

I. OMO Standards Measurement and Trends – as provided by the Operations Management Office 
Customer Support Plan and the Service Level Agreement.

J. Service Level Agreement – outlines the operations and maintenance services as required by the 
User Council for the sustainment and operations of the ALMR infrastructure.  The performance 
metrics contained in the SLA describes the maintenance standards for the ALMR system 
infrastructure.  ALMR cost share services are also outlined in the SLA.

V. MEMBERSHIP OBLIGATIONS

A. Activation and Member Fees – Not later than June 30 each year, the Parties (signatories) to the 
Cooperative and Mutual Aid Agreement will determine the cost share of individual Members, if 
applicable.   Each Party (signatory) to the Cooperative and Mutual Agreement will be responsible 
for communicating any associated costs to the Member agencies.

City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 15 of 57



A FEDERAL, STATE AND MUNICIPAL PARTNERSHIPA FEDERAL, STATE AND MUNICIPAL PARTNERSHIP

Alaska Land Mobile Radio Communications System
Membership Agreement

20190306_MbrAgrmnt-Rev14 5

1. State of Alaska - For FY2020, cost share for your agency is calculated at N/A.  The State of 
Alaska Department of Administration has funded your cost share in the amount of N/A. Your 
final cost share due is N/A.

2. Department of Defense - For FY2020, cost share for your agency is calculated at N/A.  Your 
final cost share due is N/A.  You will coordinate directly with the State of Alaska Department 
of Administration to fulfill your cost share obligation. (NOTE: The costs provided for FY2020
are based on an independent government estimate.)

3. Federal Non-DOD - For FY2020, cost share for your agency is calculated at N/A. Your final 
cost share due is N/A. You will coordinate directly with the State of Alaska Department of 
Administration to fulfill your cost share obligation. 

4. Municipalities/NGOs - For FY2020, cost share for your agency is calculated at $22,638.46.
The State of Alaska Department of Administration has funded your cost share in the amount 
of $22,638.46.  Your final cost share due is $.00.

B. Funding Obligation: Individual Member agencies operating on the System are responsible for 
requesting and obtaining sufficient funds to cover that Member’s annual cost share and shared 
system infrastructure costs, as applicable.
NOTE: The DOD Member agency Contract Officer Representative (COR) will be responsible for 
assuring funds associated with their apportioned cost share, infrastructure and Operations 
Management cost liability are provided and in place, as required, to ensure timely execution of 
contracts providing mutual services for the ALMR Membership.

C. Member Radio Equipment: Member agencies may only use ALMR-approved radio equipment.
Member agencies are responsible for acquiring and obtaining programming for their own 
equipment. A list of acceptable radio equipment is available on the ALMR website or from the 
System Management Office.  This list will be updated as additional radios pass the acceptance 
test procedures (ATP). Member agencies are accountable for equipment on the ALMR System 
and must report the lost, stolen, damaged or destroyed equipment to the Help Desk immediately 
upon discovery.  

D. Radio Maintenance and Repair: Each Member agency is responsible for proper maintenance 
and repair of its radio subscriber equipment.  This assures that the member agency’s radios are 
in optimal operating order and will not have an adverse impact on other Members’ use of ALMR.

E. Personal Business: No personal business may be conducted on ALMR by the Member, its 
employees, or authorized agents, including volunteers and the Member agency’s service
provider.

F. Compliance with Federal, State and Local Laws: Member agencies will comply with all current 
and future Federal, State and local laws, rules, and regulations, as they relate to consolidated 
public safety and dispatching.

G. Compliance with Guidelines, Procedures, and Protocols: The Member agencies will comply with 
all guidelines, policies, procedures, and protocols governing the operation and use of the ALMR
System as established by the User Council, approved by the Executive Council, and enacted by 
the Operations Management or System Management Offices.  Member agencies will comply with 
all directives of the Executive Council, including but not limited to those listed in this Membership
Agreement.  Copies of policies and procedures are available to the Member agencies through the 
Operations Management Office or at http://www.alaskalandmobileradio.org.

H. Member Agency POC: Each Member agency will identify a central point of contact (POC) to 
serve as its liaison to the ALMR System Management Office. The POC will be responsible for 
authorization of template modifications, coordination of new radios onto ALMR, providing 
fleetmapping data for record keeping purposes, providing after-hour emergency telephone 
numbers, and attending meetings necessary for the safe and efficient operation of ALMR.
Member agencies are responsible for notifying the ALMR Help Desk/OMO immediately upon 
changes to their POCs.

I. Security: All management console or dispatch console operators shall complete the required 
ALMR IA Training prior to obtaining ALMR System user credentials. All System users shall 
comply with the ALMR IA Policies. No agency shall allow the connection of unauthorized 
components to the System or to any port on the System at any time. Agencies shall ensure no 

City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 16 of 57



A FEDERAL, STATE AND MUNICIPAL PARTNERSHIPA FEDERAL, STATE AND MUNICIPAL PARTNERSHIP

Alaska Land Mobile Radio Communications System
Membership Agreement

20190306_MbrAgrmnt-Rev14 6

non-standard, unapproved applications are loaded on ALMR computers, servers, or routers at 
any time. Agencies shall ensure no unauthorized personnel are allowed access to System 
management components (e.g. management consoles) at any time. Member agencies shall 
ensure encryption is used, whenever appropriate. Agencies shall comply will all Information 
Assurance controls, policies, procedures, and processes.

J. Corrective Action: In order to protect the integrity, security, safety, and efficient operation of 
ALMR for all its Member agencies, Member agencies will take appropriate corrective action 
against any of its employees who violate ALMR guidelines, procedures, or protocols including 
those set out in this Membership Agreement.

K. System Management: Member agencies will comply with System Management direction in order 
to assure the safe and efficient operation of ALMR for all Members.

L. Trained Personnel: Member agencies are responsible for providing training to their personnel 
and will not permit any employee or other personnel, including volunteers, to use ALMR until such 
individual(s) have received proper/appropriate radio use and security training.

M. Contracting Responsibilities – DOD Member Agencies/Organizations:  DOD Member 
agencies/organizations will nominate a Contracting Officer Representative (COR) through the 
ALMR Contract Functional Commander (ALCOM J6) to 673rd Contracting for appointment.  DOD 
Member agencies/organizations will maintain a COR at all times. CORs will execute the contract 
administration related to requirements that agencies/organizations execute through individual 
Task Orders in each of the associated ALMR joint contracts from which they obtain services.  

VI. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

If any issue of ALMR non-performance arises under this Membership Agreement, the parties to the 
Cooperative and Mutual Aid Agreement agree to resolve the issue at the lowest management level of 
each party. In the event the issue remains unresolved, the parties agree to immediately escalate the 
issue to upper-level management for their consideration.  They will consider the details of the non-
performance issue, assess whether there have been past issues of non-performance, determine how 
long the non-performance has been continuing, determine the seriousness of the non-performance, and 
negotiate, in good faith, a mutually agreeable solution. In the event all parties cannot agree on a solution, 
the non-performance issue shall be directed to the Executive Council who will consult with, and seek 
advice from, the User Council on resolution of the non-performance issue. A decision by the Executive 
Council is final and non-appealable.

VII. GOVERNANCE

A. Executive Council: The Executive Council provides direction for the administration and operation
of ALMR.  The Executive Council is charged with responsibility to review and approve 
recommendations regarding future ALMR System features and enhancements, review and advise 
on customer service complaints, non-performance issues and potential Member agency
termination due to of abuse of user privileges.  The Executive Council takes advice from the User 
Council and other committees, working groups, and advisory panels set up by the Executive 
Council to assist them in making determinations on policy and direction. (Members of the 
Executive Council are listed at www.alaskalandmobileradio.org)

B. User Council: The User Council establishes policies and procedures regarding the operation of 
ALMR.  The User Council is responsible for all operational and maintenance decisions affecting 
the System.  Under the direction and supervision of the Executive Council, the User Council has 
the responsibility for management oversight and operations of the System.  The User Council,
through the OMO, oversees the development of System operations plans, procedures and 
policies under the direction and guidance of the Executive Council. (Members of the User 
Council are listed at www.alaskalandmobileradio.org)

City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 17 of 57



A FEDERAL, STATE AND MUNICIPAL PARTNERSHIPA FEDERAL, STATE AND MUNICIPAL PARTNERSHIP

Alaska Land Mobile Radio Communications System
Membership Agreement

20190306_MbrAgrmnt-Rev14 7

VIII. DURATION, CANCELLATION, & TERMINATION OF MEMBERSHIP

Agency membership on ALMR will remain in effect until canceled or terminated by the member agency
upon 30 days’ written notice.  The Membership Agreement, between the Member agency and the 
Executive Council, may also be terminated for violation(s) of the terms and conditions of the Cooperative 
and Mutual Aid Agreement (inclusive of its appendices) upon 30-days written notice to the Member
agency. Termination for cause, or departure at the request of the agency, does not relieve the Member 
agency of their financial obligations, if applicable, for the inclusive term of the membership (as specified 
on page one). Termination is subject to review and approval by the Executive Council.  

IX. TERMINATION ASSISTANCE

If this Membership Agreement is canceled or terminated for any reason, ALMR will provide reasonable 
assistance as requested by the Member agency to allow for the orderly transfer of services.

X. MISCELLANEOUS

A. Waiver: the failure of a signatory to insist upon strict adherence to any term of this Membership 
Agreement shall not be considered a waiver or deprive the signatory of the right thereafter to 
insist upon the strict adherence to that term of the Membership Agreement.

B. Modification: this Membership Agreement may not be modified, amended, extended, or 
augmented, except by written amendment signed by both the signatories to the Membership 
Agreement and approved by the Executive Council.

C. Governing Law: this Membership Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance 
with the laws of the State of Alaska, and any and all applicable Federal laws.

D. Headings: the headings given to the sections and paragraphs of this Membership Agreement are 
inserted only for convenience and are in no way to be construed as part of this Membership 
Agreement, or as a limitation of the scope of the particular sections or paragraphs to which the 
heading refers.

E. Independent Contractor Relationship: the relationship between ALMR and Member agencies is 
that of an independent contractor and client. No agent, employee, or servant of ALMR shall be 
deemed to be an employee, agent, or servant of the Member agencies. Member agencies will be 
solely and entirely responsible for its acts and the acts of its agents, employees, servants, 
subcontractors, and volunteers regarding compliance with this Membership Agreement.

XI.  SPECIAL PROVISIONS

A. Funding Obligation: Per the Cooperative and Mutual Aid Agreement, Article 2, Section 11, and 
Article 9, Section 7, and as further noted in Article 11, Section 6, nothing contained in this
Membership Agreement shall be construed as binding the Member agency to expend in any one 
fiscal year any sum in excess of available appropriations made by Congress, the Alaska 
Legislature, a city council, a borough assembly, or a board of directors for the purposes of this 
Membership Agreement for that fiscal year, or to be obligated to make an expenditure of money 
in excess of such appropriations.

B. Liability: the signatories to this Membership Agreement verify their represented agencies accept 
responsibility for any property damage, injury or death, caused by the acts or omissions of their 
respective employees acting within the scope of their employment under this Membership 
Agreement to the fullest extent permitted by law. Signatories shall not be held personally liable 
for financial or any other obligations, clauses, or responsibilities regarding this System or its 
affects.

City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 18 of 57



A FEDERAL, STATE AND MUNICIPAL PARTNERSHIPA FEDERAL, STATE AND MUNICIPAL PARTNERSHIP

Alaska Land Mobile Radio Communications System
Membership Agreement

20190306_MbrAgrmnt-Rev14 8

XII.  NOTICES

All notices given under this Membership Agreement, except for emergency service requests, will be made 
in writing. All notices will be sent to the Member agencies as follows: (fill in all gray fields, as applicable)

Agency Name   City of North Pole

POC Name Chief Geoff Coon

Address 1   125 Snowman Lane

Address 2 

City        North Pole

Zip code  99705

Phone 907-488-0444

Cell

Fax: 907-488-3747

Attention Chief Geoff Coon

E-mail gcoon@northpolefire.org

Execution of this Membership Agreement may only be made by a duly authorized representative of the 
Member agency/local unit of government.  By signing, agencies acknowledge understanding and 
acceptance of all terms and conditions of membership.  This Membership Agreement shall become 
effective as of the date of the last signature.

AUTHORIZED MEMBER SIGNATORY: AUTHORIZED PARTY SIGNATORY:

Agency Name City of North Pole Entity Name State of Alaska

Representative Name Michael Welch Representative Name Mr. Scott Stormo

Representative Title   Mayor Representative Title    Telecommunications System
Manager

Signature __________________________ Signature __________________________

Date ___________ Date ___________

City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 19 of 57



A FEDERAL, STATE AND MUNICIPAL PARTNERSHIPA FEDERAL, STATE AND MUNICIPAL PARTNERSHIP

Alaska Land Mobile Radio Communications System
Membership Agreement

20190306_MbrAgrmnt-Rev14 9

Alaska Land Mobile Radio 
Attention: Operations Management Office 
5900 East Tudor Road, Suite 121
Anchorage, Alaska 99507-1245

Approval (under authority vested by the Executive Council)

Del Smith
Operations Manager 

Signature Date

City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 20 of 57



1

Judy Binkley

From: Rene Broker <reneb@alaskalaw.com>
Sent: Thursday, May 30, 2019 4:17 PM
To: Geoff Coon
Cc: Judy Binkley
Subject: RE: North Pole Fire contract

Chief Coon,

This contract looks fine with the exception of the signature block. Contracts should be entered into only by the City of
North Pole and signed by the Mayor as authorized by the Council. To the best of my knowledge, individual departments
do not have the authority or legal status to enter into contracts.

Rene

From: Geoff Coon <GCoon@northpolefire.org>
Sent: Thursday, May 30, 2019 2:38 PM
To: Rene Broker <reneb@alaskalaw.com>
Cc: Judy Binkley <jbinkley@np ak.com>
Subject: North Pole Fire contract

The North Pole Fire Dept has had a long standing extended warranty and preventive maintenance contract with Zoll that
is renewed annually. Zoll is the company that makes our EKG Defibrillators.
Could you look at the attached Extended Warranty and Preventive Maintenance contract and give me your comments so
I can get this on the June 17th agenda.

Geoffrey Coon
Fire Chief
North Pole Fire Dept.
907 488 2232 WK
907 687 1969 Cell

CC: City Clerk

City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 21 of 57



City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 22 of 57



City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 23 of 57



City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 24 of 57



Memo
To:

From:

Date:

Re:

City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 25 of 57



City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 26 of 57



City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 27 of 57



City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 28 of 57



City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 29 of 57



City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 30 of 57



City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 31 of 57



City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 32 of 57



City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 33 of 57



City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 34 of 57



City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 35 of 57



Fairbanks North Star Borough Emergency Operations Department

3175 Peger Road • PO Box 71267 • Fairbanks, AK 99707-1267 (907)459-1481 fax 459-1119                            

FAIRBANKS NORTH STAR BOROUGH AND
CITY OF NORTH POLE

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES/AMBULANCE CONTRACT
RENEWAL AND AMENDMENT NO. 3

1. The parties, the Fairbanks North Star Borough and the City of North Pole hereby 
agree to allow for the third renewal of their Emergency Medical Services/Ambulance
contract effective July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016 for an additional one year period, 
July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019.

2. This extension shall be on the same terms and conditions in the current contract
and any amendments thereto, with the following amendments:

Section 3 will be modified as follows:

The Borough shall monitor the Contractor's compliance with this contract; however, the 
Borough shall not otherwise supervise or direct the Contractor.  The Contractor is an 
independent contractor of the Fairbanks North Star Borough.

The Borough shall pay the Contractor for this contract the sum of $446,331 inclusive of 
amounts necessary to compensate for the use of fire assets required in the course of 
EMS response.  

Section 6C will be modified as follows:

The Borough will make semi-annual contract payments to the Contractor on or about 
July 15 and January 15. Each payment will be $223,165.50.

 

City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 36 of 57



CITY OF NORTH POLE
EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES/AMBULANCE CONTRACT

SIGNATURE PAGE

APPROVED: ___________________________________ DATE:______________
                 Mayor

                      City of North Pole

APPROVED: ___________________________________ DATE:______________
Karl W. Kassel, FNSB Mayor

ATTEST: ______________________________________ DATE:______________
       Fairbanks North Star Borough Clerk

REVIEWED BY:_________________________________ DATE:______________
Fairbanks North Star Borough Legal Department

ORIGINALS FILED WITH: Contractor, Clerk’s Office and Emergency Operations Department 

City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 37 of 57



Fairbanks North Star Borough Emergency Operations Department

3175 Peger Road • PO Box 71267 • Fairbanks, AK 99707-1267 (907)459-1481 fax 459-1119                            

FAIRBANKS NORTH STAR BOROUGH AND
CITY OF NORTH POLE

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES/AMBULANCE CONTRACT
RENEWAL AND AMENDMENT NO. 4

1. The parties, the Fairbanks North Star Borough and the City of North Pole hereby 
agree to allow for the fourth renewal of their Emergency Medical Services/Ambulance
contract effective July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016 for an additional one year period, 
July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020.

2. This extension shall be on the same terms and conditions in the current contract
and any amendments thereto, with the following amendments:

Section 2, B:2 will be modified as follows:

Privacy Laws. Contractor shall sign an agreement with the Borough on or before 90 
days after the agreement is sent to the Contractor to use and disclose Protected
Health Information in compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually
Identifiable Health Information (“Privacy Rule”) (45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164)
under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and any other
relevant state and federal privacy laws. The EMS Contractor shall provide all patients a 
Borough approved Notice of Privacy Practices (NPP).   

Section 3 will be modified as follows:

The Borough shall monitor the Contractor's compliance with this contract; however, the 
Borough shall not otherwise supervise or direct the Contractor.  The Contractor is an 
independent contractor of the Fairbanks North Star Borough.

The Borough shall pay the Contractor for this contract the sum of $475,260 inclusive of 
amounts necessary to compensate for the use of fire assets required in the course of 
EMS response and EMS rolling stock replacement.

Section 6C will be modified as follows:

The Borough will make semi-annual contract payments to the Contractor on or about 
July 15 and January 15. Each payment will be $237,630.

 

City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 38 of 57



CITY OF NORTH POLE
EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES/AMBULANCE CONTRACT

SIGNATURE PAGE

APPROVED: ___________________________________ DATE:______________
                      City of North Pole

Printed Name: ________________________________  Title: ________________________

APPROVED: ___________________________________ DATE:______________
Bryce Ward, FNSB Mayor

ATTEST: ______________________________________ DATE:______________
       Fairbanks North Star Borough Clerk

REVIEWED BY:_________________________________ DATE:______________
Fairbanks North Star Borough Legal Department

ORIGINALS FILED WITH: Contractor, Clerk’s Office and Emergency Operations Department 

City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 39 of 57



Fairbanks North Star Borough Emergency Operations Department

3175 Peger Road • PO Box 71267 • Fairbanks, AK 99707-1267 (907)459-1481 fax 459-1119                            

FAIRBANKS NORTH STAR BOROUGH AND
CITY OF NORTH POLE

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES/AMBULANCE CONTRACT
RENEWAL AND AMENDMENT NO. 4

1. The parties, the Fairbanks North Star Borough and the City of North Pole hereby 
agree to allow for the fourth renewal of their Emergency Medical Services/Ambulance
contract effective July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016 for an additional one year period, 
July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020.

2. This extension shall be on the same terms and conditions in the current contract
and any amendments thereto, with the following amendments:

Section 2, B:2 will be modified as follows:

Privacy Laws. Contractor shall sign an agreement with the Borough on or before 90 
days after the agreement is sent to the Contractor to use and disclose Protected
Health Information in compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually
Identifiable Health Information (“Privacy Rule”) (45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164)
under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and any other
relevant state and federal privacy laws. The EMS Contractor shall provide all patients a 
Borough approved Notice of Privacy Practices (NPP).   

Section 3 will be modified as follows:

The Borough shall monitor the Contractor's compliance with this contract; however, the 
Borough shall not otherwise supervise or direct the Contractor.  The Contractor is an 
independent contractor of the Fairbanks North Star Borough.

The Borough shall pay the Contractor for this contract the sum of $475,260 inclusive of 
amounts necessary to compensate for the use of fire assets required in the course of 
EMS response and EMS rolling stock replacement.

Section 6C will be modified as follows:

The Borough will make semi-annual contract payments to the Contractor on or about 
July 15 and January 15. Each payment will be $237,630.

 

City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 40 of 57



CITY OF NORTH POLE
EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES/AMBULANCE CONTRACT

SIGNATURE PAGE

APPROVED: ___________________________________ DATE:______________
                      City of North Pole

Printed Name: ________________________________  Title: ________________________

APPROVED: ___________________________________ DATE:______________
Bryce Ward, FNSB Mayor

ATTEST: ______________________________________ DATE:______________
       Fairbanks North Star Borough Clerk

REVIEWED BY:_________________________________ DATE:______________
Fairbanks North Star Borough Legal Department

ORIGINALS FILED WITH: Contractor, Clerk’s Office and Emergency Operations Department 

City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 41 of 57



Memo
To: North Pole City Council
From: William Butler

Date: June 11, 2019

Subject: Budget modification to fund additional temporary hires for the Public Works 
Department

RECOMMENDATION

Approve the transfer of $15,000 from the General Fund to the Public Works Temporary Hire budget 
to fund an additional temporary summer hire ($13,373.57) and funding ($1,625.26) to provide 
temporary support when the Public Works Department is understaffed. 

BACKGROUND

In 2018, the Public Works budget included funding for five temporary hires. At the end of 2018, 
Public Works had expended 99.7% of this funding. (See attached 2018 budget, GL 01-58-1-008.) The 
2019 Department’s temporary hire budget includes only sufficient funding for three temporary hires
for three months.

During the majority of the year—September through May--the Department only has two fulltime 
employees. Both of these employees have been with the City for over five years and they earn the 
maximum hours of leave per pay period and they can accumulate no more than 320 hours of leave. 
Because the fall and winter months are generally the least busy time for the Department, it is during 
these months that our fulltime employees take leave. When this occurs, the Department has only one 
staff member. It can be a burden for a single staff member to shoulder all of the Department’s 
responsibilities when the other staff member is on leave, especially if there are snowfall events. This 
past winter, the Department hired a temporary hire to assist when there was only a single fulltime 
individual on duty while the other was on leave. This was much appreciated by the fulltime 
Department staff when only one was on duty while the other was on leave. However, using temporary 
hires this past winter consumed a share of the Department’s temporary hire budget and they will have 
fewer hours for temporary hire time during the busy summer months. 

At the end of 2018, the Department had $15,110 unexpended at the end of the year in its Other budget 
category. A number of the functions in the Other category—Beautification and Parks & Trails—
support activities that make the City a more attractive place during the summer months, the time when 
the Department is its busiest and in need of temporary hires is the greatest. In the Department we,

125 Snowman Lane
North Pole, Alaska 99705
(907) 488-8593
(907) 488-3002 (fax)
bill@northpolealaska.com

City of North Pole
Director of City Services

City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 42 of 57



recognize that at the end of the budget year, all unexpended funds return to the General Fund. The 
Department is just using the funds returned to the General Fund as a reasonable point of reference for 
our supplemental funding request.

City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 43 of 57



Summary Public Works Temporary Hire
to Date and Proposed: 2019

Employee
 Hourly 

Rate 
Annual Wage 
(01-58-1-108)

Benefits: 
WC (60% 
Building)

Benefits: WC 
(40% St & Rd 
Maintenance)

Benefits: 
Medicare

Benefits: 
Social 

Security
Total Benefits 
(01-58-1-003)

Budgetary 
total

Seasonal $18.00 $11,520.00 $622.08 $350.21 $167.04 $714.24 $1,853.57 $13,373.57
Seasonal $18.00 $11,520.00 $622.08 $350.21 $167.04 $714.24 $1,853.57 $13,373.57
Seasonal $18.00 $11,520.00 $622.08 $350.21 $167.04 $714.24 $1,853.57 $13,373.57
SUBTOTAL $34,560.00 $1,866.24 $1,050.62 $501.12 $2,142.72 $5,560.70 $40,120.70
Seasonal-new $18.00 $11,520.00 $622.08 $350.21 $167.04 $714.24 $1,853.57 $13,373.57
Seasonal-new $18.00 $1,400.00 $75.60 $42.56 $20.30 $86.80 $225.26 $1,625.26
TOTAL $46,080.00 $2,488.32 $1,400.83 $668.16 $2,856.96 $7,414.27 $55,119.53

Spent on salaries as of 6/6/19: $10,607.24

Balance in OTHER budget category at end of 2018: $15,110.37

2018 authorized Temporary Hire: $57,600 

Transfer request: $15,000

City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 44 of 57



City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 45 of 57



City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 46 of 57



City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 47 of 57



City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 48 of 57



Sponsored by: Mayor Michael W. Welch
Introduced: June 17, 2019

1

CITY OF NORTH POLE1
ORDINANCE 19-092

3
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA 4

TO AMEND THE 2019 PUBLIC WORKS BUDGET TO5
INCREASE FUNDING TO HIRE ADDITIONAL PART-TIME 6

EMPLOYEES7
8

WHEREAS, changes to the public services practices and policies is a continually changing 9
requirement; and,10

11
WHEREAS, the City of North Pole budget should be amended to conform to the requirements 12
of the City; and,13

14
WHEREAS, adjustment in the budget are necessary to remain compliant with council approved 15
authorizations and budget management rules; and16

17
WHEREAS, fiscal notes are the method prescribed by the code to amend a budget; and,18

19
WHEREAS, fiscal notes have been reviewed by the Accountant and Mayor for accuracy and 20
will be recorded as amendments to the budget upon approval.21

22
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of North Pole that it23
approves changes as listed in the attached fiscal note for the purpose of hiring additional 24
temporary employees for the Public Works Department.25

26
Section 1. This ordinance is of a general nature and shall not be codified.27

28
Section. Effective date. This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon passage.29

30
PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this 31
_____day of _____________, 2019.32

33
34

_____________________________35
Michael W. Welch, Mayor36

ATTEST:37
38
39

________________________________40
Judy L. Binkley, City Clerk41

42
43 PASSED/FAILED

Yes:
No:
Absent:

City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 49 of 57



City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 50 of 57



Sponsored by: Mayor Michael W. Welch
Introduced: June 17, 2019

1

CITY OF NORTH POLE1
ORDINANCE 19-102

3
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA 4
TO AMEND THE 2019 OPERATING BUDGET AND OTHER5

FUNDS6
7

WHEREAS, changes to the public services practices and policies is a continually changing 8
requirement; and,9

10
WHEREAS, the City of North Pole budget should be amended to conform to the requirements 11
of the City; and,12

13
WHEREAS, adjustment in the budget are necessary to remain compliant with council approved 14
authorizations and budget management rules; and15

16
WHEREAS, fiscal notes are the method prescribed by the code to amend a budget; and,17

18
WHEREAS, fiscal notes have been reviewed by the Accountant and Mayor for accuracy and 19
will be recorded as amendments to the budget upon approval.20

21
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of North Pole that it22
approves changes as listed in the attached fiscal note for the purpose managing the City budget.23

24
Section 1. This ordinance is of a general nature and shall not be codified.25

26
Section. Effective date. This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon passage.27

28
PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this 29
_____day of _____________, 2019.30

31
32

_____________________________33
Michael W. Welch, Mayor34

ATTEST:35
36
37

________________________________38
Judy L. Binkley, City Clerk39

40
41 PASSED/FAILED

Yes:
No:
Absent:

City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 51 of 57



✔

11

11

11

11

11

11

City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 52 of 57



City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 53 of 57



City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 54 of 57



City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 55 of 57



City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 56 of 57



City Council Agenda Packet - June 17, 2019 57 of 57


	Agenda
	06.03.2019 Minutes
	NB(a): ALMR Agreement
	NB(b): Zoll Warranty
	NB(c): FNSB & CONP EMS Contract
	NB(d): Ord 19-09
	NB(e): Ord 19-10
	NB(f): City Hall Copier Lease



